

PATH Annual Report Walkthrough Reference Document

IOWA BALANCE OF STATE CONTINUUM OF CARE DES MOINES/POLK COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE SIOUX CITY/WOODBURY COUNTY CONTINUUM OF CARE

version 1.0 – updated 6/30/2022



Institute for Community Alliances 1111 9th ST. #380, Des Moines, IA 50314 www.icalliances.org Alaska | Boise city/Ada County | Iowa | Minnesota | Missouri | New Hampshire | North Dakota | Omaha/Council bluffs | Rockford/Dekalb Coalition | South Carolina | Vermont | Wisconsin | Wyoming



The PATH Annual Report is a required report for all projects that receive PATH funding. Although it is only required to be submitted once a year, it is advisable for projects to review this report frequently to ensure that any errors in data are identified and corrected in a timely manner. This document strives to not only explain the details of the PATH Annual Report but offer suggestions for identifying and correcting common errors.

There are many aspects of the PATH report that follow the same logic as sections of the CoC APR and ESG CAPER reports. For these sections, please reference the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference Document</u> at the appropriate page numbers, since there will be additional or full explanations of the sections there.

Please note that all the client information shown via screenshots on this document are from fake clients. They are intended to provide visual references to questions and parts of ServicePoint that pertain to the PATH Annual report. They are NOT intended to be examples of how to complete the forms unless otherwise stated.

General Report Notes:

Active clients - Active clients are clients that you're interacting with during a reporting period. The general criteria for determining a client's active status is that the client must have a 'date of contact' within the reporting period, and they must have an entry (not necessarily an enrollment) into a project.

Date of Contact - Since a client can have a contact that's calculated after several different datapoints, the criteria for each of those datapoints as the 'date of contact' is detailed below. If any one of these is fulfilled, then a client will be considered active during the reporting period. See the <u>Definitions</u> section of this document for an explanation of how contacts are recorded.

Current Living Situation – any new Current Living Situation record or update will be considered a 'date of contact'.

Date of Engagement – if there is no Current Living Situation record on the date of engagement, then the date of engagement will be considered a 'date of contact'

PATH status: date of status determination – If there is no other contact on this date and the client became enrolled in PATH, then this date will be considered a 'date of contact'

PATH funded services provided – if there is no other contact on this date, then this date will be considered a 'date of contact'

New and Active clients – New and active clients are those identified as 'Active' and with a project start date **within** the reporting period. If the project start date is prior to or after the reporting period, they will not be considered in this group. A client is **not** required to have a PATH Status Determination as 'yes' to be included here.

Active And Enrolled clients – Active and enrolled clients are those identified as 'Active' and who have a Path Status Determination of 'yes' either **prior to or during** the reporting period. Any clients who became enrolled in PATH after the end of the reporting period will not be considered in this group.

Report Formatting – There are certain sections of this document, such as the <u>Outcomes</u>, <u>Destination at Exit</u>, and <u>Demographics</u> sections, that do not look quite the same in ServicePoint as they do here. This is because those sections are prohibitively large, and so they've been split into smaller sections to dissect and explain while maintaining the headings necessary to fully understand the sections.



Contents

General Report Notes	2
Running the PATH Report	4
Client Filter	5
Report Results	5
Accessing Client IDs in the Reports	5
Persons served during this reporting period	5
Services Provided	7
Referrals Provided	8
Outcomes	9
Destination at Exit	12
Demographics	
Definitions	
Reference Materials	



Running the PATH Report

To access the PATH report, you will want to click on the Reports tab (1) in ServicePoint, and then click on the PATH report (2) under Provider Reports.



In the Report Options section, you will select 'Reporting Group' (3) for the Provider Type. Then, you will select 'Search' (4), and type in 'path' in the search bar on the pop-up window (5). This will allow you to select the PATH group for your organization.

You generally will want to select a reporting group since that will return information for both the Street Outreach and Services Only PATH projects. However, if you only want to pull this report for an individual project, you will instead select 'Provider' for the Provider Type, then you can select the specific project in question.

Maa. 57				
	Reporting Group			
	Reporting	Reporting Groups Search		
	Search for Reportin	ng Groups by using keywords from their Group name or d	escription.	
	Search path		5	
Report Options 3				
Provider Type O Provider Provider	Search	Clear		
Reporting Group * Please choose a reporting group. Search Clear	Reporting	Group Search Results		
Program Date Range* ////////////////////////////////////	# A B C D	EFGHIJKLMNOPQR	STUVV	XYZ
Build Report Download Clear 7	Group ID	Name	Date Created	Last Update
	305	Abbe CR - PATH	07/11/2016	12/27/2019
	309	Abbe IC - PATH	07/13/2016	12/27/2019
	465	Abbe IC PATH - Kasper Checking APR	11/19/2021	11/19/2021
	424	ABBE PATH	02/26/2021	02/26/2021
	340	ALL PATH 2018	02/14/2018	02/14/2018
	311	Black Hawk Path	07/18/2016	12/27/2019
	312	Hillcrest PATH	07/20/2016	12/27/2019
	130	PATH Providers	08/05/2009	12/16/2016
	304	PHC PATH	07/11/2016	12/30/2019
	310	VERA PATH	07/13/2016	12/27/2019
	6	Showing 1-10 of 10		



To select a reporting group, you'll click on the green plus sign to the left of the group (6).

Once you've selected the reporting group, you will complete the program date range (7). This is the date range you want to pull the report for. You will want to use the *exact dates* you're interested in. The first date is the 'report start date', and the second date is the 'report end date'. The reporting period for PATH projects is going to be July 1st of one year to June 30th of the following year.

For example, this year's reporting period will be 7/1/2021 to 6/30/2022, and you will want to pull the report for those exact dates. However, you can pull this report for any timeframe of your choosing for monitoring or other data purposes throughout the year.

Then, you will select 'Build Report' (8), and after a short period of time you the report will appear below.

Once the report has been built, you can download the report by clicking on the 'download' button (9). The report will download as a zipped file that contains individual excel documents for each section of this report. When it comes to the annual upload, you will want to upload the entire zipped file.

Client Filter

This section is explained in the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference Document</u> on page 9, with an example of what this looks like on page 12.

Report Results

Accessing Client IDs in the Reports

This section is explained in the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference Document</u> on page 10.

Reminder: do NOT share files via e-mail without first deleting client names!

Persons served during this reporting period

This section provides an overview of the clients that you've interacted with or served during the reporting timeframe.

PATH Report Results

Persons served during this reporting period:				
Persons served during this reporting period:	Count			
8. Number of persons contacted by PATH-funded staff this reporting period	380			
9. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period in a PATH Street Outreach project	55			
10. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period in a PATH Services Only project	307			
11. Total number of new persons contacted this reporting period (#9 + #10 = total new clients contacted)	362			
12a. Instances of contact this reporting period prior to date of enrollment	305			
12b. Total instances of contact during this reporting period	329			
13a. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period who could not be enrolled because of ineligibility for PATH	6			
13b. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period who could not be enrolled because provider was unable to locate the client	2			
14. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period who became enrolled in PATH	303			
15. Number with active, enrolled PATH status at any point during the date range	317			
16. Number of active, enrolled PATH clients receiving community mental health services through any funding source at any point during the reporting period	24			

8. Number of persons contacted by PATH-funded staff this reporting period – this section counts all <u>active clients</u> for all clients in your reporting group or project.



9. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period in a PATH Street Outreach project – this section counts all <u>new and active clients</u> ONLY for clients enrolled in Street Outreach projects.

10. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period in a PATH Services Only project – this section counts all <u>new and active clients</u> ONLY for clients enrolled in Services Only projects.

11. Total number of new persons contacted this reporting period (# 9 + #10 = total new clients contacted) – this section counts all <u>new and active clients</u> across all project types, and as the title suggests should be equal to the Street Outreach and Services Only results added together (section 9 + 10).

12.a. Instances of contact this reporting period prior to date of enrollment – this section counts the number of <u>contacts</u> between the first contact and the date of enrollment for all active clients. All enrollments and all contacts will be counted, even if a client has multiple enrollments during the reporting period, and even if a client has multiple contacts on one day.

12.b. Total instances of contact during this reporting period – this section focuses only on clients who became enrolled in PATH during the reporting period and counts all the contacts for those clients. Further explanation of this section is described in <u>12.a</u>.

13.a. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period who could not be enrolled because of ineligibility for PATH – this section counts all clients in <u>11</u> who have 'No' as the PATH status determination, and the reason they're not enrolled is ineligibility.

13.b. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period who could not be enrolled because provider was unable to locate the client– this section counts all clients in <u>11</u> who have 'No' as the PATH status determination, and the reason they're not enrolled is due to inability to locate the client.

14. Number of new persons contacted this reporting period who became enrolled in PATH – this section counts the clients in <u>11</u> who have 'Yes' as the PATH status determination, and who have a date of enrollment during the reporting period.

15. Number with active, enrolled PATH status at any point during the date range – this section counts all <u>active and enrolled</u> clients in your reporting group or project.

16. Number of active, enrolled PATH clients receiving community mental health services through any funding source at any point during the reporting period – this section counts all clients in section <u>14</u> where either (or both):

a. They have a received a community mental health service at a date prior to the report end date;

b. They attained a community mental health referral dated prior to the report end date



Services Provided

This table shows the number of clients in <u>section 15</u> that received each service during the reporting period. Services Provided

Type of Service	Number of people receiving service
17a. Reengagement	0
17b. Screening	263
17c. Clinical Assessment	0
17d. Habilitation/rehabilitation	0
17e. Community mental health	8
17f. Substance use treatment	0
17g. Case management	263
17h. Residential supportive services	0
17i. Housing minor renovation	0
17j. Housing moving assistance	0
17k. Housing eligibility determination	4
17I. Security deposits	18
17m. One-time rent for eviction prevention	2

Clients who received more than one type of service are reported once in all service categories that apply. Clients who received one service multiple times are reported only once for that type of service.

For example: if a client received one screening service, one residential supportive services service, and three case management services in the reporting period, they will show up once for 'Screening', once for 'Residential Supportive Services', and once for 'Case management'.

If a service doesn't show for a client, it is most often caused by either not changing the Service Provider to the actual PATH project, and just leaving it on the agency name (as shown below), or...

Add Service	
Household Mem	bers
Service Provider*	Vera French Community Mental Health Center (615) ✓ -Select- Vera French Community Mental Health Center (615)
Start Date *	Vera French - PATH - Street Outreach (1323) Vera French - PATH - Supportive Services (1324)

...by only completing the *Service Type* (highlighted in blue below) but NOT completing *the Type of PATH FUNDED Service Provided* (highlighted in yellow below). Each of these errors can be corrected by navigating to the clients' service history and then editing the specific services.

Start Date * 08 / 17 / 2022 3 3 2 3 5 1 End Date 08 / 17 / 2022 3 3 2 3 5 1 Service Type Basic Needs (B) Provider Specific -Select - \u229 - Select - \u2	-	
End Date 08 / 17 / 2022 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2	Start Date *	08 / 17 / 2022 🧖 🔿 💐 5 🗸 :
Service Type Basic Needs (B) Provider Specific Service -Select- Service Notes	End Date	08 / 17 / 2022 🔊 💸 5 🗸 :
Provider Specific -Select- Service Notes	Service Type	Basic Needs (B)
Service Notes	Provider Specific Service	-Select- 🗸
	Service Notes	
Type of PATH FUNDED Service Provided	Type of PATH FUNDED Service Provided	-Select-



Referrals Provided

This table shows number of clients in <u>section 15</u> that received each referral during the reporting period, and of those, the number who attained services from those referrals.

Referrals Provided				
Type of Referral	Number receiving each referral	Number who attained the service from the referral		
Community mental health	25	19		
Substance use treatment	4	0		
Primary health/dental	9	5		
Job training	0	0		
Educational services	0	0		
Housing services	3	2		
Temporary housing	0	0		
Permanent housing	22	8		
Income assistance	5	1		
Employment assistance	0	0		
Medical Insurance	2	1		

Similar to services, clients who received more than one type of referral are reported once in all categories that apply, and individuals who received a referral multiple times are only reported once for that type of referral.

Number receiving each referral - each row is count of people who received that referral

Number who attained the service from the referral – each row is a count of people who attained each referral. The number of clients in this column should be less than or equal to the number of clients who received the referral.

The most common error with referrals is the referral not registering on the report. This can be caused by not creating the *Need* first – if you just create a referral, only the agency will be listed as the *Provider* by default, NOT the specific PATH project. In order to fix this, you will have to edit the *Need* connected to the referral.

Need Information	1
Provider *	Vera French Community Mental Health Center (615) 🗸
Need *	-Select- Vera French Community Mental Health Center (615)
Date of Need*	Vera French - PATH - Street Outreach (1323) Vera French - PATH - Supportive Services (1324)

Additionally, referrals won't register on the PATH Annual Report if the *Type of PATH Referral* is not completed. This can be fixed by editing the referral to update that element.



Referral Data	
Needs Referral Date *	08 / 17 / 2022 🛛 💐 🍣 5 🔹 : 19 🗸 : 35 🗸 PM 🗸
Referral Ranking	-Select- 🗸
VI-SPDAT Score	Please Select a VI-SPDAT Score Search Clear
Type of PATH Referral	-Select-
If any "Type of PATH Referral" made, select Outcome	-Select- V
Projected Follow Up Date	
Follow Up User	Vera French Community Mental Health Center (615) V -Select- V

Outcomes

This section reports on several outcomes of the PATH clients. For each of these outcomes, results are reported for all active & enrolled clients at the project start, at the project exit for leavers, and at the end of the reporting period for stayers. The totals for these sections at project entry should match the number of clients in <u>section</u> <u>15</u>. Additionally, the sum of the totals for these sections of both the leavers and the stayers should match the number of clients in <u>section 15</u>.

Outcomes					
Outcomes	At PATH project entry	AT PATH project exit (for clients who were exited from PATH this year - leavers)	At report end date (for clients who were still active in PATH as of report end date - stayers)		
19. Income from any source					
Yes	181	49	141		
No	130	29	92		
Client doesn't know	1	0	1		
Client refused	0	0	0		
Data not collected	5	0	5		
Total	317	78	239		

19. Income from any source reports whether clients received any income. You can find more detailed information regarding clients' income in the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference Document</u> sections 16 – 19a2 on pages 30-35.



Outcomes			
Outcomes	At PATH project entry	AT PATH project exit (for clients who were exited from PATH this year - leavers)	At report end date (for clients who were still active in PATH as of report end date - stayers)
20. SSI/SSDI			
Yes	109	25	86
No	208	53	153

20. SSI / SSDI reports on the number of clients receiving SSI or SSDI. If a client receives both, they're only counted once under 'Yes'.

Q Monthly Income HUD Verificatio						
		Source of Income*	Monthly * Amount	Receiving Income Source?*	Start Date *	End Date
	1	Child Support (HUD)		No	08/17/2022	
	1	TANF (HUD)		No	08/17/2022	
	1	SSDI (HUD)	US\$10.00	Yes	08/17/2022	
	1	SSI (HUD)	US\$10.00	Yes	08/17/2022	

Outcomes			
Outcomes	At PATH project entry	AT PATH project exit (for clients who were exited from PATH this year - leavers)	At report end date (for clients who were still active in PATH as of report end date - stayers)
21. Non-cash benefits from any source			
Yes	192	56	140
No	119	22	94
Client doesn't know	0	0	0
Client refused	0	0	0
Data not collected	6	0	5

21. Non-cash benefits from any source reports whether clients received any non-cash benefits. You can find more detailed information regarding clients' income in the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference</u> <u>Document</u> sections 20a and 20b on page 36.

Ron-Cash Benefits			HUD Verification 🛕
Source of Non-Cash Benefit*	Receiving Benefit? *	Start Date *	End Date
Add			



Outcomes			
Outcomes	At PATH project entry	AT PATH project exit (for clients who were exited from PATH this year - leavers)	At report end date (for clients who were still active in PATH as of report end date - stayers)
22. Covered by health insurance			
Yes	278	71	213
No	35	7	25
Client doesn't know	0	0	0
Client refused	0	0	0
Data not collected	4	0	1

22. Covered by health insurance reports on whether clients are covered by health insurance. You can find more detailed information regarding clients' income in the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference</u> <u>Document</u> section 21 on page 37.

Outcomes			
Outcomes	At PATH project entry	AT PATH project exit (for clients who were exited from PATH this year - leavers)	At report end date (for clients who were still active in PATH as of report end date - stayers)
23. Medicaid/Medicare			
Yes	263	66	206
No	54	12	33

23. Medicaid / Medicare reports on the number of clients receiving Medicaid or Medicare. If a client receives both, they're only counted once under 'Yes'.

Q	Health Insurance			HUD Verification 🗸
	Health Insurance Type *	Start Date *	Covered?*	End Date
3	MEDICARE	08/17/2022	Yes	
0	MEDICARE	08/17/2022	Yes	

Outcomes			
Outcomes	At PATH project entry	AT PATH project exit (for clients who were exited from PATH this year - leavers)	At report end date (for clients who were still active in PATH as of report end date - stayers)
24. All other health insurance			
Yes	28	8	19
No	289	70	220

24. All other health insurance reports on the number of clients receiving any other health insurance that is NOT Medicare or Medicaid. If a client receives any health insurance that IS NOT Medicaid or Medicare, they are counted once under 'Yes'. If a client receives no health insurance or receives ONLY Medicaid or Medicare, they will be counted once under 'No'.



Destination at Exit

Destination at Exit	
Destination at Exit	Count
Temporary Destinations	
Emergency shelter, including hotel or motel paid for with emergency shelter voucher, or RHY-funded Host Home Shelter	1
Moved from one HOPWA funded project to HOPWA TH	0
Transitional housing for homeless persons	0
Staying or living with family, temporary tenure (e.g., room, apartment or house)	5
Staying or living with friends, temporary tenure (e.g., room apartment or house)	3
Place not meant for habitation (e.g., a vehicle, an abandoned building, a bus/train/subway station, airport, or anywhere outside)	0
Safe Haven	0
Hotel or motel paid for without emergency shelter voucher	2
Host Home (non-crisis)	0
Subtotal	11
Institutional Situation	
Foster care home or foster care group home	0
Psychiatric hospital or other psychiatric facility	0
Substance abuse treatment facility or detox center	0
Hospital or other residential non-psychiatric medical facility	0
Jail, prison, or juvenile detention facility	1
Long-term care facility or nursing home	0
Subtotal	1
Permanent Destinations	
Moved from one HOPWA funded project to HOPWA PH	0
Owned by client, no ongoing housing subsidy	0
Owned by client, with ongoing housing subsidy	0
Permanent housing (other than RRH) for formerly homeless persons	0
Rental by client, no ongoing housing subsidy	4
Rental by client, with RRH or equivalent subsidy	0
Rental by client, with VASH housing subsidy	0
Rental by client, with GPD TIP housing subsidy	0
Rental by client, with other ongoing housing subsidy	1
Rental by client, with HCV voucher (tenant or project based)	1
Rental by client in a public housing unit	0
Residential project or halfway house with no homeless criteria	0
Staying or living with family, permanent tenure	0
Staying or living with friends, permanent tenure	0
Subtotal	6
Other Destinations	
Deceased	1
Other	0
No exit interview completed	2
Client doesn't know	0
Client refused	0
Data not collected	9
Subtotal	12
PATH-enrolled clients still active as of report end date (stayers)	239
Total	317

This table shows the same information as is found in <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference</u> <u>Document</u> p.40 with two differences – firstly, there is a slight organizational difference in the order of destination types (temporary and permanent destinations are swapped). Secondly, this section contains an additional destination type: *PATH-enrolled clients still active as of report end date (stayers)*, which counts the number of clients who were still active and enrolled at the end of the reporting period.



Demographics

This table shows the demographic breakdowns of all active and enrolled clients during the reporting period. Please note that, unless otherwise stated, each section's total number of clients should match the number of clients in section <u>15</u> of this report. If they do not, then it means that there is an error – usually that that portion of the assessment was unanswered – that needs to be corrected.

Demographics	
Demographics	Of those with an active, enrolled PATH status during this reporting period, how many individuals are in each of the following categories?
26a. Gender	
Female	141
Male	172
No Single Gender	1
Questioning	0
Transgender	2
Client doesn't know	0
Client refused	0
Data not collected	1
Total	317

26a Gender shows the same type of information as is found in <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference</u> <u>Document</u> section 10a, p.24.

26b. Age	
17 and under	0
18 - 23	27
24 - 30	42
31 - 40	81
41 - 50	65
51 - 61	82
62 and Over	20
Client doesn't know	0
Client refused	0
Data not collected	0
Total	317

26b Age shows the same type of information as is found in <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference</u> <u>Document</u> section 11, p.25.

26c. Race (Note: An individual who identifies as multiracial should be counted in all applicable categories. This demographic element will not sum to total persons enrolled)		
American Indian, Alaska Native, or Indigenous	14	
Asian or Asian American	3	
Black, African American, or African	95	
Native Hawailan or Pacific Islander	2	
White	219	
Client doesn't know	0	
Client refused	1	
Data not collected	0	
Total	334	

26c Race shows the race(s) the clients identify as. Since there is no category of 'multi-racial' here, each client's primary and secondary racial identity will be represented here.



26d. Ethnicity	
Non-Hispanic/Non-Latin(a)(o)(x)	304
Hispanic/Latin(a)(o)(x)	12
Client doesn't know	0
Client refused	0
Data not collected	1
Total	317

26d Ethnicity shows the same type of information as is found in <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough</u> <u>Reference Document</u> section 12b, p.26.

26e. Veteran Status (adults only)	
Veteran	11
Non-veteran	301
Client doesn't know	0
Client refused	0
Data not collected	5
Total	317

26e Veteran Status (adults only) only reports on active & enrolled clients who are adults. In most cases, this will be all the clients who are enrolled in PATH for a given reporting period. You can find additional information regarding fixing any veteran-related errors in section 6b, pg. 15 of the <u>CoC APR and ESG CAPER Walkthrough</u> <u>Reference Document.</u>

26f. Co-occurring disorder			
Co-occurring substance use disorder	119		
No co-occurring substance use disorder	193		
Unknown	5		
Total	317		

26f Co-occurring disorder reports on whether clients have a co-occurring substance use disorder. If a client reports an Alcohol Use Disorder, a Drug Use Disorder, or Both Alcohol and Drug Use Disorder, then they will appear under 'Co-occurring substance use disorder'. This section reports on the most recent data available, regardless of data collection stage, provided the information date is within the reporting period.

	Q Disabilities				HUD Verification ✔	
		Disability Type *	Disability * Determination?	If Yes, Expected to be of long-continued and indefinite duration and substantially impairs ability to live independently	Start Date*	End Date
-	1	Drug Use Disorder (HUD)	Yes (HUD)		08/17/2022	
	7	Both Alcohol and Drug Use Disorder (HUD)	Yes (HUD)		08/17/2022	
	7	Alcohol Use Disorder (HUD)	Yes (HUD)		08/17/2022	



26g. SOAR connection			
Yes	10		
No	291		
Client doesn't know	0		
Client refused	0		
Data not collected	16		
Total	317		

26g SOAR connection reports on the most recent data available in the SOAR Connection question in the enrollment, regardless of data collection stage, provided the information date is within the reporting period.

Date of Engagement	06 / 02 / 2022 🛛 🔊 💐 G	
Date of PATH Status Determination	01 / 01 / 2022 🛛 💐 😋 G	
Client Became Enrolled in PATH	-Select- ✔ G	
If no, reason not enrolled	-Select-	∀ G
Connection with SOAR	-Select- 🗸 G	

26i. Length of stay in prior living situation (emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation only)			
One night or less	36		
Two to six nights	67		
One week or more, but less than one month	52		
One month or more, but less than 90 days	20		
90 days or more, but less than one year	14		
One year or longer	7		
Client doesn't know	0		
Client refused	0		
Data not collected	0		
Total	196		

26i Length of stay in prior living situation (emergency shelter or place not meant for human habitation only) reports on how long the clients were in their prior living situation as long as that homeless situation was an emergency shelter or a place not meant for human habitation. Ideally, this total will be equal to or greater than the total in <u>section 9.</u>

Prior Living Situation	Place not meant for habitation (HUD)	-
Length of Stay in Previous Place	90 days or more, but less than one year 🗸 G	

26j. Chronically homeless (at project start)			
Yes	48		
No	269		
Unknown	0		
Total	317		

26j Chronically homeless (at project start) reports the number of clients who were chronically homeless at the project start, according to page 10 of the <u>HMIS Reporting Glossary</u>. Clients listed as 'unknown' may have data missing, preventing a chronic homeless determination. Please reference section 6d on p.18 of the in <u>CoC APR</u> and <u>ESG CAPER Walkthrough Reference Document</u> for additional guidance on what information may be missing.



26k. Domestic Violence History (adults only)			
Yes	128		
No	184		
Client doesn't know	0		
Client refused	1		
Data not collected	4		
Total	317		

26k Domestic Violence History (adults only) reports on the adult clients' domestic violence history status. This section reports on the most recent data available, regardless of data collection stage, provided the information date is within the reporting period.

Domestic violence victim/survivor	-Select- 🗸 G
If yes for Domestic violence victim/survivor, when experience occurred	-Select- 🗸 G
If yes for Domestic Violence Victim/Survivor, are you currently fleeing?	-Select- 🗸 G



Definitions

Adult – any client 18 years old or older, regardless of any other household members.

Child – is any client under the age of 18, regardless of any other household members.

Contact – A contact is a record of caseworker interactions with a client, and a contact should be recorded any time there is an interaction between a client and a caseworker, even if there are multiple contacts in one day.

IOWA HHS PATH Entry SO 2022				
Q	Current Living Situ	ation		
	Start Date *		End Date	:
>	06/01/2022		06/01/2022	
1	11/17/2021		11/17/2021	
Add	I			
Date	of Engagement	06 / 02 /	/ 2022 🧖 🌍 🧖 G	
Date Dete	of PATH Status rmination	01/01	/ 2022 🧃 🎝 🧖 G	
Clien PATH	t Became Enrolled in I	-Select- 🗸	G	
If no	, reason not enrolled	-Select-		∨ G

Each individual Current Living Situation record is considered an individual contact. Any of the other potential contact points (date of engagement records, for example) will ONLY be considered a record of an individual contact if they occur WITHOUT a Current Living Situation record occurring on the same date, since the Current Living Situation is the only reliable way to measure multiple interactions in a single day.

For example: a caseworker meets with a client, formally engages them, and enrolls them in the project, all on the same date. On 6/1/22, the client has these records created on their file:

One Current Living Situation record Another Current Living Situation record Date of Engagement record PATH Status Determination record A PATH service provided

These 5 records only amount to 2 individual contacts due to the two individual Current Living Situation records.

Another example: a caseworker meets with a client and formally engages them on 6/1/22. They enroll them in the project on 6/3/22. They meet with the client on 6/5/22 to check in. On 6/5/22, the client has these records created on their file:

Date of Engagement record – 6/1/22 PATH Status Determination record – 6/3/22



PATH service provided record – 6/3/22 Current Living situation record – 6/5/22

In this situation, the client will have one contact on 6/1/22, one contact on 6/3/22 (since there is no additional Current Living Situation record on that date), and one contact on 6/5/22.

Head of Household (HoH) – anyone whose *Relationship to Head of Household* on the entry assessment is listed as 'Self'. This also includes unaccompanied children who are their own heads of household

Household – the individual or group of people who are served by a project. A household can consist of only one person, or it can consist of multiple individuals. Household members do not need to be related and can enroll in a project at different times (i.e., have different start dates or different exit dates) to still be considered a part of the same household.

Household with children and adults – a household with at least one adult and one child (aged under 18) present, regardless of whether the child or children are present for the full project stay.

Household with only children - a household composed of only children.

Household without children – a household composed of only adults aged 18 and older

Leaver - a client that has been exited from the project prior to the end of the reporting period

Stayer - a client that has not been exited from the project prior to the end of the reporting period

Youth – unless otherwise specified, this refers to unaccompanied youth. This means that any client between the ages of 12 and 24 (inclusive) who are not enrolled with at least one household member 25 years old or older. When we refer to accompanied youth, this includes all youth between ages 12 and 24 (inclusive) who are enrolled with at least one household member 25 years old or older.

Reference Materials

These are the materials that were referenced in the creation of this document. These links will be updated in concurrence with any updates made to this document itself; it is expected that all documents will be updated roughly every 2 years, as HUD data standards are updated.

HMIS Standard Reporting Terminology

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/HMIS-Standard-Reporting-Terminology-Glossary.pdf

HMIS Programming Specifications PATH Annual Report HMIS Programming Specifications: PATH Annual Report - September 2021 Version 3.5 (hudexchange.info)

PATH Program HMIS Manual

PATH Program HMIS Manual - 2022 Version (hudexchange.info)

2022 HMIS Data Standards Dictionary

https://files.hudexchange.info/resources/documents/FY-2022-HMIS-Data-Dictionary.pdf

2022 HUD Geocodes – the geocodes for lowa start on page 62

https://www.hud.gov/sites/dfiles/CPD/documents/FY-2022-GeoCodes-Report.pdf